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§ 44.303 Determination. 
(a) Within 120 days of the receipt of a 

charge, the Special Counsel shall un-
dertake an investigation of the charge 
and determine whether a complaint 
with respect to the charge will be 
brought before an administrative law 
judge specially designated by the At-
torney General to hear cases under sec-
tion 102 of the Act. 

(b) When the Special Counsel decides 
not to file a complaint with respect to 
such charge before an administrative 
jaw judge within the 120-day period, or 
at the end of the 120-day period, the 
Special Counsel shall issue letters of 
determination by certified mail which 
notify the charging party and the re-
spondent of the Special Counsel’s de-
termination not to file a complaint. 

(c) When the charging party receives 
a letter of determination issued pursu-
ant to § 44.303(b), indicating that the 
Special Counsel will not file a com-
plaint with respect to such charge, the 
charging party, other than an officer of 
the Immigration and Naturalization 
Service, may bring his or her com-
plaint directly before an administra-
tive law judge within 90 days after his 
or her receipt of the Special Counsel’s 
letter of determination. The charging 
party’s complaint must be filed with an 
administrative law judge pursuant to 
the regulations issued by the Office of 
the Chief Administrative Hearing Offi-
cer codified at 28 CFR 68.1. 

(d) The Special Counsel’s failure to 
file a complaint with respect to such 
charge, before an administrative law 
judge within 120 days shall not affect 
the right of the Special Counsel to con-
tinue to investigate the charge or to 
bring a complaint before an adminis-
trative law judge during the additional 
90-day period as defined by paragraph 
(c) of this section. 

(e) The Special Counsel may seek to 
intervene at any time in any pro-
ceeding brought by a charging party 
before an administrative law judge. 

[Order No. 1225–87, 52 FR 37409, Oct. 6, 1987, as 
amended by Order No. 1520–91, 56 FR 40249, 
Aug. 14, 1991]

§ 44.304 Special Counsel acting on own 
initiative. 

(a) The Special Counsel may, on his 
or her own initiative, conduct inves-

tigations respecting unfair immigra-
tion-related employment practices 
when there is reason to believe that a 
person or entity has engaged or is en-
gaging in such practices. 

(b) The Special Counsel may file a 
complaint with an administrative law 
judge where there is reasonable cause 
to believe that an unfair immigration-
related employment practice has oc-
curred within 180 days from the date of 
the filing of the complaint.

§ 44.305 Regional offices. 

The Special Counsel, in consultation 
with the Attorney General, shall estab-
lish such regional offices as may be 
necessary to carry out his or her du-
ties.

PART 45—EMPLOYEE 
RESPONSIBILITIES

Sec.
45.1 Cross-reference to ethical standards 

and financial disclosure regulations. 
45.2 Disqualification arising from personal 

or political relationship. 
45.3 Disciplinary proceedings under 18 

U.S.C. 207(j). 
45.4 Personal use of Government property.

AUTHORITY: 5 U.S.C. 301, 7301; 18 U.S.C. 207; 
28 U.S.C. 503, 528; DOJ Order 1735.1.

§ 45.1 Cross-reference to ethical stand-
ards and financial disclosure regu-
lations. 

Employees of the Department of Jus-
tice are subject to the executive 
branch-wide Standards of Ethical Con-
duct at 5 CFR part 2635, the Depart-
ment of Justice regulations at 5 CFR 
part 3801 which supplement the execu-
tive branch-wide standards, the execu-
tive branch-wide financial disclosure 
regulations at 5 CFR part 2634 and the 
executive branch-wide employee re-
sponsibilities and conduct regulations 
at 5 CFR part 735. 

[61 FR 59815, Nov. 25, 1996]

§ 45.2 Disqualification arising from 
personal or political relationship. 

(a) Unless authorized under para-
graph (b) of this section, no employee 
shall participate in a criminal inves-
tigation or prosecution if he has a per-
sonal or political relationship with:
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(1) Any person or organization sub-
stantially involved in the conduct that 
is the subject of the investigation or 
prosecution; or 

(2) Any person or organization which 
he knows has a specific and substantial 
interest that would be directly affected 
by the outcome of the investigation or 
prosecution. 

(b) An employee assigned to or other-
wise participating in a criminal inves-
tigation or prosecution who believes 
that his participation may be prohib-
ited by paragraph (a) of this section 
shall report the matter and all attend-
ant facts and circumstances to his su-
pervisor at the level of section chief or 
the equivalent or higher. If the super-
visor determines that a personal or po-
litical relationship exists between the 
employee and a person or organization 
described in paragraph (a) of this sec-
tion, he shall relieve the employee 
from participation unless he deter-
mines further, in writing, after full 
consideration of all the facts and cir-
cumstances, that: 

(1) The relationship will not have the 
effect of rendering the employee’s serv-
ice less than fully impartial and profes-
sional; and 

(2) The employee’s participation 
would not create an appearance of a 
conflict of interest likely to affect the 
public perception of the integrity of 
the investigation or prosecution. 

(c) For the purposes of this section: 
(1) Political relationship means a close 

identification with an elected official, 
a candidate (whether or not successful) 
for elective, public office, a political 
party, or a campaign organization, 
arising from service as a principal ad-
viser thereto or a principal official 
thereof; and 

(2) Personal relationship means a close 
and substantial connection of the type 
normally viewed as likely to induce 
partiality. An employee is presumed to 
have a personal relationship with his 
father, mother, brother, sister, child 
and spouse. Whether relationships (in-
cluding friendships) of an employee to 
other persons or organizations are 
‘‘personal’’ must be judged on an indi-
vidual basis with due regard given to 
the subjective opinion of the employee. 

(d) This section pertains to agency 
management and is not intended to 

create rights enforceable by private in-
dividuals or organizations. 

[Order No. 993–83, 48 FR 2319, Jan. 19, 1983. 
Redesignated at 61 FR 59815, Nov. 25, 1996]

§ 45.3 Disciplinary proceedings under 
18 U.S.C. 207(j). 

(a) Upon a determination by the As-
sistant Attorney General in charge of 
the Criminal Division (Assistant Attor-
ney General), after investigation, that 
there is reasonable cause to believe 
that a former officer or employee, in-
cluding a former special Government 
employee, of the Department of Justice 
(former departmental employee) has 
violated 18 U.S.C. 207 (a), (b) or (c), the 
Assistant Attorney General shall cause 
a copy of written charges of the viola-
tion(s) to be served upon such indi-
vidual, either personally or by reg-
istered mail. The charges shall be ac-
companied by a notice to the former 
departmental employee to show cause 
within a specified time of not less than 
30 days after receipt of the notice why 
he or she should not be prohibited from 
engaging in representational activities 
in relation to matters pending in the 
Department of Justice, as authorized 
by 18 U.S.C. 207(j), or subjected to other 
appropriate disciplinary action under 
that statute. The notice to show cause 
shall include: 

(1) A statement of allegations, and 
their basis, sufficiently detailed to en-
able the former departmental employee 
to prepare an adequate defense, 

(2) Notification of the right to a hear-
ing, and 

(3) An explanation of the method by 
which a hearing may be requested. 

(b) If a former departmental em-
ployee who submits an answer to the 
notice to show cause does not request a 
hearing or if the Assistant Attorney 
General does not receive an answer 
within five days after the expiration of 
the time prescribed by the notice, the 
Assistant Attorney General shall for-
ward the record, including the report(s) 
of investigation, to the Attorney Gen-
eral. In the case of a failure to answer, 
such failure shall constitute a waiver 
of defense. 

(c) Upon receipt of a former depart-
mental employee’s request for a hear-
ing, the Assistant Attorney General 
shall notify him or her of the time and
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place thereof, giving due regard both to 
such person’s need for an adequate pe-
riod to prepare a suitable defense and 
an expeditious resolution of allegations 
that may be damaging to his or her 
reputation. 

(d) The presiding officer at the hear-
ing and any related proceedings shall 
be a federal administrative law judge 
or other federal official with com-
parable duties. He shall insure that the 
former departmental employee has, 
among others, the rights: 

(1) To self-representation or represen-
tation by counsel, 

(2) To introduce and examine wit-
nesses and submit physical evidence, 

(3) To confront and cross-examine ad-
verse witnesses, 

(4) To present oral argument, and 
(5) To a transcript or recording of the 

proceedings, upon request. 
(e) The Assistant Attorney General 

shall designate one or more officers or 
employees of the Department of Jus-
tice to present the evidence against the 
former departmental employee and 
perform other functions incident to the 
proceedings. 

(f) A decision adverse to the former 
departmental employee must be sus-
tained by substantial evidence that he 
violated 18 U.S.C. 207 (a), (b) or (c). 

(g) The presiding officer shall issue 
an initial decision based exclusively on 
the transcript of testimony and exhib-
its, together with all papers and re-
quests filed in the proceeding, and shall 
set forth in the decision findings and 
conclusions, supported by reasons, on 
the material issues of fact and law pre-
sented on the record. 

(h) Within 30 days after issuance of 
the initial decision, either party may 
appeal to the Attorney General, who in 
that event shall issue the final decision 
based on the record of the proceedings 
or those portions thereof cited by the 
parties to limit the issues. If the final 
decision modifies or reverses the initial 
decision, the Attorney General shall 
specify the findings of fact and conclu-
sions of law that vary from those of the 
presiding officer. 

(i) If a former departmental em-
ployee fails to appeal from an adverse 
initial decision within the prescribed 
period of time, the presiding officer 

shall forward the record of the pro-
ceedings to the Attorney General. 

(j) In the case of a former depart-
mental employee who filed an answer 
to the notice to show cause but did not 
request a hearing, the Attorney Gen-
eral shall make the final decision on 
the record submitted to him by the As-
sistant Attorney General pursuant to 
subsection (b) of this section. 

(k) The Attorney General, in a case 
where: 

(1) The defense has been waived, 
(2) The former departmental em-

ployee has failed to appeal from an ad-
verse initial decision, or 

(3) The Attorney General has issued a 
final decision that the former depart-
mental employee violated 18 U.S.C. 207 
(a), (b) or (c), 

may issue an order: 
(i) Prohibiting the former depart-

mental employee from making, on be-
half of any other person (except the 
United States), any informal or formal 
appearance before, or, with the intent 
to influence, any oral or written com-
munication to, the Department of Jus-
tice on a pending matter of business for 
a period not to exceed five years, or 

(ii) Prescribing other appropriate dis-
ciplinary action. 

(l) An order issued under either para-
graph (k)(3) (i) or (ii) of this section 
may be supplemented by a directive to 
officers and employees of the Depart-
ment of Justice not to engage in con-
duct in relation to the former depart-
mental employee that would con-
travene such order. 

[Order No. 889–80, 45 FR 31717, May 14, 1980. 
Redesignated at 61 FR 59815, Nov. 25, 1996, 
and further redesignated at 62 FR 23943, May 
2, 1997]

§ 45.4 Personal use of Government 
property. 

(a) Employees may use Government 
property only for official business or as 
authorized by the Government. See 5 
CFR 2635.101(b)(9), 2635.704(a). The fol-
lowing uses of Government office and 
library equipment and facilities are 
hereby authorized: 

(1) Personal uses that involve only 
negligible expense (such as electricity, 
ink, small amounts of paper, and ordi-
nary wear and tear); and
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(2) Limited personal telephone/fax 
calls to locations within the office’s 
commuting area, or that are charged to 
non-Government accounts. 

(b) The foregoing authorization does 
not override any statutes, rules, or reg-
ulations governing the use of specific 
types of Government property (e.g. in-
ternal Departmental policies governing 
the use of electronic mail; and 41 CFR 
(FPMR) 101–35.201, governing the au-
thorized use of long-distance telephone 
services), and may be revoked or lim-
ited at any time by any supervisor or 
component for any business reason. 

(c) In using Government property, 
employees should be mindful of their 
responsibility to protect and conserve 
such property and to use official time 
in an honest effort to perform official 
duties. See 5 CFR 2635.101(b)(9), 
2635.704(a), 2635.705(a). 

[62 FR 23943, May 2, 1997]

PART 46—PROTECTION OF HUMAN 
SUBJECTS

Sec.
46.101 To what does this policy apply? 
46.102 Definitions. 
46.103 Assuring compliance with this pol-

icy—research conducted or supported by 
any Federal Department or Agency. 

46.104–46.106 [Reserved] 
46.107 IRB Membership. 
46.108 IRB functions and operations. 
46.109 IRB review of research. 
46.110 Expedited review procedures for cer-

tain kinds of research involving no more 
than minimal risk, and for minor 
changes in approved research. 

46.111 Criteria for IRB approval of research. 
46.112 Review by institution. 
46.113 Suspension or termination of IRB ap-

proval of research. 
46.114 Cooperative research. 
46.115 IRB records. 
46.116 General requirements for informed 

consent. 
46.117 Documentation of informed consent. 
46.118 Applications and proposals lacking 

definite plans for involvement of human 
subjects. 

46.119 Research undertaken without the in-
tention of involving human subjects. 

46.120 Evaluation and disposition of applica-
tions and proposals for research to be 
conducted or supported by a Federal De-
partment or Agency. 

46.121 [Reserved] 
46.122 Use of Federal funds. 

46.123 Early termination of research sup-
port: Evaluation of applications and pro-
posals. 

46.124 Conditions.

AUTHORITY: 5 U.S.C. 301; 28 U.S.C. 509–510; 
42 U.S.C. 300v–1(b).

SOURCE: 56 FR 28012, 28020, June 18, 1991, 
unless otherwise noted.

§ 46.101 To what does this policy 
apply? 

(a) Except as provided in paragraph 
(b) of this section, this policy applies 
to all research involving human sub-
jects conducted, supported or otherwise 
subject to regulation by any federal de-
partment or agency which takes appro-
priate administrative action to make 
the policy applicable to such research. 
This includes research conducted by 
federal civilian employees or military 
personnel, except that each department 
or agency head may adopt such proce-
dural modifications as may be appro-
priate from an administrative stand-
point. It also includes research con-
ducted, supported, or otherwise subject 
to regulation by the federal govern-
ment outside the United States. 

(1) Research that is conducted or sup-
ported by a federal department or 
agency, whether or not it is regulated 
as defined in § 46.102(e), must comply 
with all sections of this policy. 

(2) Research that is neither con-
ducted nor supported by a federal de-
partment or agency but is subject to 
regulation as defined in § 46.102(e) must 
be reviewed and approved, in compli-
ance with § 46.101, § 46.102, and § 46.107 
through § 46.117 of this policy, by an in-
stitutional review board (IRB) that op-
erates in accordance with the pertinent 
requirements of this policy. 

(b) Unless otherwise required by de-
partment or agency heads, research ac-
tivities in which the only involvement 
of human subjects will be in one or 
more of the following categories are 
exempt from this policy: 

(1) Research conducted in established 
or commonly accepted educational set-
tings, involving normal educational 
practices, such as (i) research on reg-
ular and special education instruc-
tional strategies, or (ii) research on the 
effectiveness of or the comparison
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